STATE OF MARYLAND 310631

EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT
ANNAPOLIS, MARYLAND 21404

HARRY HUG
GOVERNO

s Governor's Information Practlces Commission
State House- Room H-4
{301) -269-2810

Governor's Information Practices Commission

Minutes of Cammission meeting- January 19, 1981

The Cammission convened with all present except Mr. E. Roy Shawnj
Mr. John E. Donahue, Ms. Florence B. Isbell, Dr. Harriet Trader and
Mr. Wayne Heckrotte., The meeting began with the introduction of Mr.
John Clinton, the new representative from the Comptroller's Office.
Mr. Arthur S. Drea, Jr. presented a flyer on a book entitled, Guidebook
to Freedam of Information and Privacy Acts. It was decided that
libraries would be checked to see if the book was currently available.

Mr. Drea asked if there were any additions to the minutes from
the previous meeting. Delegate Nancy Kopp said that it had been her
impression that the Cammission had not decided that the issue of
confidentiality of bill drafts was beyond its jurisdiction as indicated
in the minutes of the meeting of December 15, 1980, but would be
dealt with later if time allowed. Delegate Kopp requested that the
minutes be corrected to reflect this fact. The minutes were adopted with
this change. .

Mr. Drea discussed the scheduling of the two public hearings. One
is to be held in Annapolis for the general public early in the
legislative session,perhaps the third week of February. The second is
to be held in Baltimore and will be structured for agencies. Delegate
Kopp added that the Commission might want a public hearing in Baltimore
for state employees. Mr. Drea stressed that the Baltimore hearing will
be open to all but if another hearing was necessary, one could be
scheduled. Mr. Dennis Hanratty stated that it would be desireable for
him to meet with the representatives from agencies before the hearings.

Discussion cammenced on the proposed Interim Report. Delegate Kopp
said that in the Introduction there appeared to be a confusion between
the records of private organizations and those of governmental organizations.
In addition, the report needed a more explicit recognition of the right
of citizens to gain access to the public records of goverrment. She
suggested the insertion of a statement reflecting the growing concern in
this area. Mr. Dennis Sweeney agreed, stating that current legislation
dealing with openess in records and privacy had been underscrutinized
but that the report seeamed to put a greater ewphasis on privacy. Mr.
Drea ooncurred that the Introduction should be modified, but nonetheless
stated that the emphasis of work would probably be in the privacy area.
It was discussed and decided that a paragraph would be added to detail
the public's right to know more explicitly.




Mr. Albert Gardner requested clarification of the following
statement that appeared in the first page of the report: " Today, companies
throughout the world rather routinely engage in transactions that would
have been impossible before the 1950s". Mr. Hanratty responded by
providing an example of a foreign physician contacting the U.S. National
Library of Medicine and receiving almost instantaneous assistance in
diagnosis. Mr. Gardner stated that it was his understanding that camputers
affect the speed of transactions but not the type of transactions that
could be conducted. Mr. Hanratty answered that certain transactions became
feasible only as a consequence of computerization. Mr. Robin Zee felt
that the key word of the sentence was "rbutinely" . It was suggested that
the sentence be modified to read: "Today, companies throughout the world
rather routinely engage in transactions in a manner that would have been
impossible before the 1950s".

A muwmber of comments and questions were clarified rather quickly. Mr.
Drea, Delegate Kopp and Mr. Clinton felt that the report should be footnoted;
the other members concurred. Delegate Kopp asked if the use of "personal
records" rather than "personnel records" in the first paragraph of Section IV
had been intentional. Mr. Hanratty replied that the term “perscnal" was
meant to include "personnel". Finally, Mr. Zee asked if the statement of
the second paragraph of page 3- "...the expansion of our information- '
gathering ability has far outstripped the ability of individuals to determine
what type of persconal information is released and for what purposes"~ was '
in reference to the ability to collect infomation. Mr. Hanratty
responded affimmatively.

Considerable discussion ensued over the statement on page 5 of the
report asserting the need for the enactment of camprehensive privacy
legislation. Delegate Kopp maintained that though there was certainly a
need for a thorough examination of the issues involved, it was too early
to conclude that legislation was required. Mr. Hanratty noted that Mr.
Wayne Heckrotte had called him and raised essentially the same objection.

At the same time, a number of members requested clarification of the word
“"comprehensive". Mr. Sweeney observed that comprehensive privacy protection
might be provided through the enactment of categorical, rather than

amibus, legislation. Mr. Hanratty stated that it had been his impression
that the Cammission supported the development of omnibus legislation;
Cammission members felt, however, that his point remained an open question.
Mr. Zee suggested that it was probably premature to conclude that we needed
a comprehensive privacy act. After dellberatlng on these p01nts, the
Commission instructed Mr. Hanratty to eliminate all statements in the report
calling for comprehensive legislation and to state instead that the Commission
would examine the suitability of such legislation.

Discussion was again held on the need for a balance in the report
between privacy issues and public access issues. Delegate Kopp recammended
the inclusion of a new section that would deal with matters affecting the right
of citizens to gain access to the public records of govemment. Mr. Sweeney
agreed, noting that the report gives the impression that privacy was by far
and away the principal concern. Unless the emphasis on privacy was tempered
samewhat, he suggested, the Cammission would not receive substantial input
fram citizens on the issue of access to public records. Mr. Zee supported
this position, noting that the report could, and should not be so biased as
to eliminate the public records side of the question altogether.




. Senator Timothy Hickman raised the issue of the development of adequate

security of personal records in the possession of state goverrment. He sug-
(‘ gested that it might be helpful to expand and strengthen those sections of
the report dealing with security, noting in particular the need for risk
analysis assessment., A consensus was reached to add a paragraph that would
address these points. ‘

Various ocomments were made concerning the section of the report noting
the Consumer Council's survey of record-keeping practices of Maryland hos-—
pitals. Senator Hickman asked whether the Consumer Council had surveyed
state hospitals only, or included both state and private hospitals; Mr.
Hanratty responded that the survey covered both types. Mr. Drea felt that this
point should be noted in the report. Mr. Hanratty stated that a camprehensive
survey examining hospital procedures was being designed by Ms. Thea Cunningham,
and asked for guidance regarding to whom the survey should be sent. Delegate
Kopp pointed out that the Executive Order establishing the Cammission only
authorized that body to consider the practices of state institutions. It was
Mr, Sweeney's opinion, however, that access to hospital records was such a
sensitive and important issue that the Commission should consider including
private institutions as well. The Commission decided to send the survey to
both public and private institutions; in the letter addressed to private insti-
tutions, however, the Comission would simply ask for their cooperation.

Mr. Sweeney suggested the utility of including an Appendix to the report
listing those sections of the Maryland Annotated Code pertaining to the protec—
tion of personal records. In response Mr. Hanratty felt that such a list
might  be incomplete since there could be articles of the Annotated Code of

n which he might be unaware. He also recounted difficulties in receiving infor-
mation on the subject from various Assistant Attorneys General. .Mr. Sweeney
" offered to be of assistance to Mr. Hanratty in this regard. The Commission
concluded that a list of privacy statutes would be attached to the report,
though the list would be selected, not comprehensive.

Mr. Drea solicited the opinions of Commission members on Section ITI
entitled "A Privacy Bill of Rights." It was agreed, first of all, that the
section should be tentatively retitled, "General Issues of Privacy." As in
the case of the report examining the current status of privacy policy in
Maryland, the Commission felt that the language introducing Section IIT
should be moderated. Rather than imply that the Commission had already
endorsed the list of principles in that section, it was felt that the intro-
ductory statement should be rephrased indicating that these were merely issues
to be considered. Delegate Kopp read a suggested introduction to which the
members agreed,

Comments were requested from the members regarding the twenty-one issues
that were listed in the report. Mr. Sweeney expressed concern that there
was insufficient attention given to the cost of enacting camprehensive privacy
protection. Mr. Hanratty replied that, in his opinion, costs were adequately
mentioned on page 12 of Section IV. 1In addition, Mr. Drea observed that most
of the issues contained disclaimers such as "to the greatest extent possible.”
It was decided to leave references to the cost of privacy protection as they
appeared in the proposed report. One issue was modified at the request of.
ﬁ Mr. Zee. Issue #21 was changed to read: "An agency which is authorized in
accordance with state law and regulation to destroy records involving personal
facts of an individual's life should ensure that records are destroyed in a
secure and thorough manner."




Commission members agreed that the format used in Section III was an
appropriate one in order to receive camments from agency officials and the
general public. By listing issues numerically, readers would be able to make
camnents to specific items in the report. Mr. Zee noted that the Commission
might want to invite groups to add issues that possibly were overlooked in
the report. In this regard, Mr. Hanratty read a copy of a letter to be sent
to agency officials along with the Interim Report. The members supported the
content of the letter; Delegate Kopp felt, however, that the letter should
came from Mr. Drea as Chaimman of the Cammission. This position was supported
by the other members and adopted. Mr. Donald Tynes urged the inclusion in
the letter of a date by which agency officials should respond to Commission
requests; this position was also adopted.

Discussion then focused on the timing of the report. Mr. Drea suggested
that the Interim Report be given to the Governor and the members of the General
Assembly first, and then to agencies and interest groups. Delegate Kopp
observed that the Information Practices Commission was a gubernatorial rather
than legislative body and therefore protocol required that the Governor receive
the report before anyone else. This position was seconded by Mr. Zee. It was
decided to send the report to the Governor first; then, after waiting several
days, the Commission would contact the Governor's Office and ask if there were
any major objections before distributing it.

Senator Hickman inquired whether the staff had campleted the personal
reoord—keeping survey to be sent to agency officals. Mr, Hanratty showed him
a copy of the proposed survey and stated that he felt that it would be better
to delay distribution of the survey until agency officials had designated
their liaisons' to the Commission.

Commission members proceeded to discuss the new Section IV pertaining to
access to public records. Delegate Kopp suggested the inclusion in the report
of problems that citizens may have experienced in gaining access to such records.
Mr. Hanratty agreed and asked Mr. Sweeney whether there existed any report sum-
marizing problems encountered in this regard. Mr. Sweeney responded that such
a report did not exist but offered to provide assistance to the Camnission in
delineating these problems. In order to provide a better sense of balance to
the report, Commission members decided to change the part examining status of
access to public information in Maryland to Section III and made Section IV
cover issues regard_mg privacy. The plan of the Commission would then follow
as Section V. :

Two principal modifications were requested in the section of the proposed
Interim Report specifying the plan of the Information Practices Commission.
Delegate Kopp and Mr. Zee asked Mr. Hanratty to look at that section and modify
any language obligating the Commission to design comprehensive privacy legisla-
tion. Mr. Clinton noted that the section discussed public hearings for agency
officials and citizen groups and inquired as to where state employees fit into
this general plan. Mr. Hanratty conceded that this was an oversight of the
report and agreed to include a statement requesting the participation of state
employees at the Commission's public hearings.

Members turned to a discussion of a number of administrative matters
associated with the Interim Report. Mr. Drea suggested that the report should
include the names of all Commission members. Mr. Drea distributed a list of
interest groups to be considered as recipients of the report; any additions or
deletions would be referred to Mr. Hanratty. Camnission members considered the
publishing of the Interim Report in the Maryland Register and other publicity




through newspaper articles. Mr. Drea stated that after the report was delivered

to the Governor, Mr. Hanratty would contact Mr. Gene Oishi regarding a possible
press release. .

Two final points were covered before the meeting was concluded. Delegate
Kopp asked that in the future the minutes be stamped "DRAFT" until adopted by
the Commission members and that the minutes fram the previous meeting be cor-
rected. Mr. Sweeney asked whether bills were being reviewed to determine
whether they should be deferred. Mr. Drea responded that he was handling it

himself ‘and would send letters regardlng bills that the Commission would
like deferred




n

FINAL COPY
MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING-FEBRUARY 23, 1981

The first Public Hearing of the Governor's Informétion Practices Comission was held
February 23,’1981 at 10 A.M. in the Montgamery County Delegation Room of the Lowe House
Office Building in Annapolis, Maryland. The following Commission members were in attendance:
Mr. Arthur S. Drea, Jr, Chairman, Mr. Dennis Sweeney, Mr, John Clinton; Mr. Donald Tynes,

Dr. Harriet Trader, Delegate Nancy Kopp, Senator Timothy Hickman, Mr. Robin Zee, Mr. Albert

Gardner and Mr. John Donahue.

Mr. Arthur S. Drea opened the hearing by explaining that the Commission had been charged
with the responsibility of examining the record-keeping practices of state govefnment and

balancing the individual's right to privacy with the public's right to know.

' ‘ The first speaker, Ms. Pat Doane, Aide to Delegate Judith Toth, related the case of an

individual licensed to hunt in Maryland. The individual enlisted belegate Toth's assistance
when he found that his name had been given by the State of Maryland to the National Rifle
Association. Delegate Toth discovered that curfent statute allows the State list to be
sold. This policy is contrary to her belief that the confidentiality of personal informa—_
tion submitted to obtain a license should be protected. To this end, Delegate Toth intro-
duced House Bill 1366 which would affect the sale of the Motor Vehicle Administration's
List for car registration or personal licenses and House Bill 1368 which cbvers allvstéte
licensed individuals and prohibits the sale of their personal information for political or

commercial purposes. Ms, Doane asked for the support of the Commission in this legislation.

Ms. Doane additionally discussed the State Information Referral Service. Due to the

‘ﬁniact that Maryland has existing referral services, Ms. Doane maintained that the cost for

a centralized service would be less for Maryland than other states. She noted that as a

temporary stopgap measure, the state is helping citizens contact government by




functionalizing and using color-coded pages in the telephone book. This does not serve
{!hpnother function of the Information Referral Service however, which is to discover the

) needs of the citizens. Delegate Kopp and Ms. Doane discussed the state wide toll-free
number. and its funding. There was.sane confusion as to whether or not the current ser-

vice was responsible for referral of all services.

In reference to the dissemination of personal information through state lists, Mr.
Drea and Ms. Doahe discussed the difficulties involved in providiﬁg information needed
by the public-such as verifidation that an individual is a licensed physician—and at the
same time limiting the information disseminated. Thié balance was not addressed in the

bill.

The next witness'was Mr. Basil Wisner fram the COmptroller's Office. Accompanying
Mr. Wisner were Mr. George Spriggs (Diréctor#Inmrme Tax Division) and Mr. Philip Martin
C-\(Director—Data Processing Division). Mr. Wisner presented written testhnony (copy
attached) in resbnse to an incident cited in the Interim Report. Mr. Wisne: discussed
the incident and procedures employed in the Camptroller's Office to guarantee the security.

of personal records.

"Mr. Clinton asked about the availability of tax information to other state agencies.
Mr. Spriggs responded, citing Article 81, Section 300, which places limitations on the
dissemination of tax return information. He stated that in regards to state agency requests,
two cases existed where legislation allowed information to be shared with other state
ageﬁcies—The Absent Parent Tracer Program (Department of Human Resources) and the Property
Tax Circuit Breaker Program (Department of Assessments and Taxation). Any other requests
fram other state agencies for tax information would be referred to the Attorney General
".\for an opinion. Mr. Spriggs responded to three questions posed by Mr. Dennis Hanratty
concerning the disclosure of information to other state agencies. Mr. Spriggs informed

the Camission that, first, the taxpayer'is not notified regarding disclosure; second, -




that the accuracy of information is not verified; and third, the taxpayer does not have
"‘the opportunity to prohibit such a disclosure. Mr, Wisner added that instances involving
the disclosure of information to another state agency primarily evolve when information

the taxpayer has supplied to one agency needs to be verified.

Senator Hickman asked if a catalogue of infommation systems was available at the pre-
sent time. Mr. Martin explained that there is not a "master" list, noting that each depart-
ment designed its own system. Mr. Martin Qbserved that the data center functioned as a
service area to the other agencies, running systems at the direction of the other agencies
through the different procedures that those agencies have established. In résponse to a
question fram Senator Hickman, Mr. Martin stated that the Déta Processing Division éiso
encompassed the Baltimore Data Center and handled welfare, unemployment and retired

employees' checks and food stamps.

‘-5 Senator Hickman inquired_about security measures in the Baltimore facility. Mr.
Martin cited the study of security measures conducted in Annapolis mentioned in Mr. Wisner's
testimony. A similar check of security was conducted at the Baltimore facility. Both
centers had the same type of software and security requirements; however, the building
in Baltimore is open to the public. Mr. Martin noted that additional security is provided

in the Baltimore facility at the doors to the various roams housing personal information.

A discussion followed concerning the security measures at terminals for Social
Services around the state. Mr. Martin responded that each agency'determined its own sécurity
levels and that a Security Officer is identified in each agency. In additioh, Mr. Martin
observed that_state legislative auditors examine security procedures in the course of con-
ducting their audits.

‘”’ Mr. Drea returned to the topic of notifying the téxpayer of record dissemination.

Mr. Spriggs stated that to his knowledge there is no law prohibiting the Incame Tax Division

[
N




from notifying an individual that his tax information is being divulged. To date, the
mivision has never received complaints from individuals protesting the disclosure of this

information.

According to the representatives of the Ccmptrolier's office, Incame Tax Information
can be released to the State Police conducting a criminal investigation only upon receipt
of a court order signed by a judge. In addition, it was noted that information is exchanged
between Maryland and the Internai Revenue Service (in accordance with spécific federal
security regulations) and other states whén such states have enacted security measﬁres

similar to those in Maryland.

Mr. Zee requested examples of problems the Di»vision may have had in the realm of
privacy of personal information. Mr. Spriggs noted that the Division receives requests
| for tax information pertaining to prominent individuals fram members of the press. In
ﬁaddition, requests are received occasionally by telephone where the identity of the indi-
vidual cannot be verified. Mr. Wisner also mentioned cases involving divorce settle-

ments where a court order is required for the release of incane tax information,

Mr. Drea asked if Federal security regulations governing the exchange of information
between Maryland and the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) were available to the public. Mr.
Spriggs thought that this was the case but stated he would have to check to be certain.

In the discussion that followed it became clear that although:the Cométroller‘s Division
has its own Secx_.lrity Manual for its Incame Tax data, federal regulations govern the release
of information obtained fram the IRS. Information obtained fram the IRS cannot be released
by Maryland to another state égenc'y, a crjminai invéstigation {without prior approval) or
another division of the Camptroller's office. Mr. Clinton pointed out that Maryland and

, ﬂdirmesota are two states that have been used aé models for a national training program on'

' 'security procedures by the IRS.




Mr. Hanratty asked if Mr. Spriggs had any objections.to placing stricter statutory
Q"&imitations on the disclésure of Income Tax information similar to the language governing
| public assistance records. Mr. Spriggs camented that the Cdnptroller's Office would
hot object to additional limitations and noted that the preference of the department is

to limit dissemination as much as possible.

In response to a quesﬁion posed by Mr. Clinton, Mr. Spriggs elaborated on situatioﬁs
where Incame Tax informatioﬁ might be shared with other tax divisions. Mr. Spriggs noted
that this usually occuré in joint audits or joint collection efforts. Mr. Wisner added
that another incident where information might be shared would be between Sales Tax and

Income Tax to verify gross sales upon which to apply sales tax liability.

Mr. Sweeney returned to the issue of inter-state agreaments and asked if these agree~
ments were in writing. Mr. Spriggs responded affirmatively and observed that they limit
".!he use that other states can make of records they receive. He agreed to provide samples

of such agreements to the Commission.

Mr. Zee requested input in terms of any changes the Comptroller's Office would like
to see in the current area of privacy or public information. Mr. Wisner reéponded that
he favored as little disSeminatiohrof perscnal information as possible. In this way,
the Comptroller's office could guarantee the confidentiality of such information. Mr.

Wisner expressed the view that the privacy of the individual's tax return should be pro—

tected to the greatest extent possible.

‘Mr. Drea inquired as to the number of states with which Maryland had agreements
governing the exchange of information; Mr. Spriggs replied that currently there were
ﬁxgreements with 8 to 10 states. The majority of cases necessitating the exchange of infor-
'_ mation between states occurred between continguous states and involved a person living

in one state while working in another. Mr. Drea then asked whether there might not evolve




a need for the exchange of information in cases where an individual had moved and declared
Mes paid in another state. Mr. Wisner agreéd but statedv that the border states made up

the bulk of the cases necessitating inter-state agreements. Mr. Sprigcjs added that if an

agreement did not exist at the current time, one could be made up and, if signed by both

parties, would become effective for all subseguent requests.

Mr. Drea asked if t;here was any document outlining the reéults of the security‘ system
used in the Comptroller's Division. Mr. Wisner responded that he could probably review
security documents and extract this information for the Cammission. - Mr. Martin added that.
'oomputer software security gives regular reports on attempts to breach the systém, ~and
errors in acéessing information are distinguished from actual unéuthorized attempts to

access the system.

Mr. Drea concluded by expressing the Comission's wish to cooperate with the Comptrol-
‘, ’.er's Office when Mr. Hanratty visited them and assured Mr. Wisner that the Ccmniésion had
not intended to single cut the Comptroller's Office. Mr. Drea noted that the specific

incident in the Interim Report was mentioned because of its wide publicity in the press and

the conclusion was drawn that security of personal records of state agencies ‘should be

- reviewed.

The public hearing closed with a notice that the next hearing would be held on March

l6th in Baltimore at 201 West Preston Street, Room I~3 at 10 A.M.

A short Commission meeting followed. The survey on record-Keeping practices of state

and private hospitals was distributed to Commission members. No major changes were made.

ﬂ Discussion covered the meetings that Mr. Hanratty has been scheduling with state agen-
cies. He informed members that responses had been favorable, with the liaison appointed
in each agency varying fram the Public Affairs Officer to the Executive Assistant to the

Secretary. ‘




Mr. Drea brought up the intention of the Camnission to request deferment of bills
ﬁ(without taking a position) which directly inpacted on the work of the Cammission—such
as the one introduced by Delegate Toth. Those bills of a clarifying nature would not

be affected.

In conclusion, Commission members requested that Mr. Hanratty contact the Departments

" of Health and Mental Hygiene, Human Resources, Public Safety and Education and inform them

that the Camiission would like to have a representative fram their departments testify at
the next public hearing. Mr. Hanratty added that the Department of Transportation would
be sending a representative. Mr. Tynes stated that representatives fram the Department

of Personnel would attend and Mr. Zee informed Mr. Hanratty that the State Archivist would

also be there.

(o)




NOTE:

Copies of testimony presented have not
been included due to the volume. . If
you would like to receive a copy of any
particular testimony, please contact
our office. ' '




FINAL QOPY

MINUTES OF THE PUBLIC HEARING HELD MARCH. 16, 1981

The second Public Hearing of the Governor's Information Practices Commission
was held March 16, 1981 in Room I~3, 201 West Preston Street, Balt:iinore, Maryland. - -
Members in attendance were: Mr. Arthur S. Drea, Jr., Chairman, Mr. John Clinton,
Mr. Donald Tynes, Mr. Robin Zee, Dr. Harriet Trader, Senator Timothy Hickman, Mr.
Alpbert Gardner, Mr. Dennis Sweeney and Mr. Wayne Heckrotte. Mr Drea opened the
Public Hearing with an explanation of the purpose and goals of the Infom_\ation

Practices Commission.

The first witness to testify was Mr. John Bertak, Public Affairs Officer for
the Department of Transportation (testimony attached). He was followed by Mr.

William Iong of the Motor Vehicle Administration (MVA) (testimony attached).

After Mr. Bertak presented his testimony, discussion followed on the Interim
Report. Mr. Bertak objectedi to issue number 7 in the report. This issue dealt
with the proposal that an agency publish annually é report of all record systems
maintained by that agency. Mr. Bertak felt that this would be a significant |
administrative burden requiring the Department to hire at least two additional

personnel,

In response to a question of the Commission, Mr. Lohg stated that certified
copies of driver records are given to the police/law enforcement free of charge.

Members of the public and insurance canpanies are charged $1 per copy.

Mr. Long stated that any individual can request a copy of another individual's
record. In order to illustrate the range of information available on an individual's
record, Mr. Long and Ms. Carol Shipley, another Motor Vehicle Admistration represen-

tative, called the Camission's attention to a sample record. Contained in that




record were the following items: soundex number, full name, address, persenal
deecription, class license, expiration date, cohvictions and address changes, etc.
On the back of the form is an explanation of the abbreviations. Mr. Long added
that MVA also has ocamputerized vehicle registration records which include name,
soundex number, and street address of the registrant, as well as tag number, title
number, ID number and other vehicle information. Insurance records are not main-
tained on computer and thus require a manual search; the infonnafion is available
for a $1 fee. Mr. Long explained that Maryland does not have the equipment tﬁat
would allow the Department to give accessibility to insurance campanies. This would
require over $100,000 in modifications to existing equipment (not ihclusive of

costs of security measures).

Mr. Drea asked if this was the same information that a district court could pull
up on a camputer. Mr, Long replied that a district court can pull up a camplete
history. In the discussion that followed, the point was made that the record was

not limited to three years unless the record had been expunged.,

In response to a question fram Mr. Tynes, Mr. ILong explained that it is not
necessary to have a driver's license number to get a copy of someone's record. The
Department has search capability using the full name via the soundex system. Such

a capability is primarily for law enforcement purposes.

Mr. Zee requested the conditions governing the written agreement used in the

sale of certain camputer tapes. Mr. Long responded that when a request for tapes

vis received by the MVA, the Administration sends a contraet specifying the follow-

ing: 1) the reason why the tape is being requested; 2) restrictions against resale;
3) requirement that the Administration be sent a copy of the material mailed;

5) requirement that names and addresses of any individuals be deleted upon regquest.




Mr. Long was then ésked if MVA oonducts follow-ups to make sure that tapes are
being used in an appropriate manner. Although no specific procedurevis followed
requiring spot checks, Mr. Long stated that the Administration does .receive copies
of the mailings; furthermore, he noted that in the three years he has worked at MVA
no request had ever been denied and no contract had ever been breached. The point
was also made that lists are not often sold because of the cost (a camplete copy

of the registration list runs $20,000).

Mr. Bertak added that many canpanies could do better by obtaining lists from

mailing houses. He also pointed out that the accessibility of information on .

drivers records has a beneficial side-recall notices on defective autamobiles being
one example. Mr. Drea asked if the title registration would contain information
on a specific automobile where drivers license lists would not. Mr. Bertak res-

ponded affimatively.

In the case of an autamobile recall, Mr. Long explained that automobile manu-
facturers can supply to the MVA a tape input listing of the soundex numbers of the
individuals whose records are requested. The‘Department can process this and feturh
to the manufacturers the requested records on a computer tape. It is a print tape

and in this sense allows a degree of security. The recipient of this tape cannot

maintain this information by loading it into his  own data base. In order to

put this information into his own system, the recipient would have to print the
tape and then key punch the information again. It would be feasible to do but the

work involved serves as more of a deterrent.

Mr. Drea asked if specific information could be supplied upon request (e.g.
a list of all drivers between 30 and 40 years of age). Mr. Long responded that such
information could be provided but that such a request would require more time and

therefore be more expensive.




Mr. Dennis Hanratty asked if an individual can request permanent deletion of
his name. Thié could be done, Mr. Iong said, as the names of the individuals
requesting deletion would be placed on a separate list. However, in the case of a

recall, the individual would be included on the list.

Mr. Sweeney asked whether there were other good reasons(besides recall notices)
for allowing access to drivers records. Mr. Iong cited the casebof an accident
where a need to obtain insurance information on the other vehicle involved exists
or the case where.an employer (e. g. a trucking camwpany) needed to check the

driving record of its drivers.

Mr. Hanratty asked for clarification of the "#9-Alcohol" designation on the back
of the Maryland Drivers license. Ms. Shipley explained that it was used if an
individual's driving privilege was revoked and that it was seldom used anymore.

When licenses are renewed now, individuals must sign a consent statement on their

-application. In the past, the person being reinstated signed at that time that he

was willing to take an aloohol test. The information would appear on an individual's

record as a Number 9 restriction and the reason behind it would not show.

Mr. Drea referred to Section 16-119 which states that all medical information
sukmitted is confidential and cannot be released in the absence of a court order.
He asked if there were any exceptions to this provision. Mr. Long replied that this
information was not included as part of the computerized record. Instead, a case
file was maintained at the Medical Advisory Board. An individual can see his own
file and can grant permission to an attorney representing him to view it. A law

enforcement agency would need a court order.

It was observed that while criminal records are available for public access,

medical records were regarded as confidential. Mr. Drea felt that both records could




contain damaging information. Mr. Bertak stated that -convictions were a necessary
part of the driving record. Medical information, in his opinion , was a more persocnal
matter and there was no necessity that it be available at all. Mr, Bertak noted
that conviction information was not arbitrary information put on the record by the
MVA, the State Police or ,the‘ Department df Transportation, but was added by the
ocourts. The point was also made that a conviction record was required in order

to assess points.

In response toA a quesiion from Mr. Dréa citing the Public Information Act, 76-4,
which requires that there be a designated custodlan of the records, Mr. Long indica—
ted that he thought at MVA Mr. William T.S. Bricker was official custodian; Mr.
Ber_t;ak stated that Mr. Rhett Barkley was the recoxds custodiah‘ for the Department

of Transportation.

Mr. Sweeney asked if the driving record would show that a case was referred
to the Medical Advisory Board. Ms. Shipley said that this would only be shown if

the individual was suspended.

There were no further questions and the next witness, Mr. lee D. Hoshall, was

introduced. (Testimony attached)

Following Mr, Hoshall's testimony, Mr. Drea proposed that the State Archivist
be heard out of order. so that he could attend a hearing in Annapolis. Mr. Papenfuse,

State Archivist, presented his testimony (attached).

Discussion followed on the ideal guidelines for striking a balance between pér-—
sonal privacy and the historical preservation of records. " At what point would publi-
cation of records not be an embarassment or invasion of privacy? Mr. Papenfuse

explained that by the time records are turned over to the Archives (usually 20 years.

-




after the generation of the record), there should be very little that could not
be opened immediately. If something was sensitive béyond the120 years, Mr,
Papenfuse indicated, then restrictions could be placed on it. Mr. Paéenfuse
added that under Maryland statute there are no réstrictions unless they are legally
mandated restrictions with respect to certain kinds of records. Decisions were
developed through the scheduling process in relationship to the agency and in rela-
tiOnship to existing law. Mr. Papenfuse felt that it was more pfeferable to have a
review panel to help promulgate rules and regulations rather than to set arbitrary
time limits for certain categories of records. There are records, he believes,
that should not be disclosed.

Mr, Papenfuse stated that the Archives operate under the Hall of Records Cammis-
sion umbrella and has established guidelines to the records in itslcdntrol.‘ If an

individual requests a sensitive record, the Archives has statutory authority under

Article 54 to refuse disclosure.

Mr., Papenfuse notedvdivorce records before 1960 are located in the Archives,
while after 1960, access is obtained through the courts. Senator Hickman wondered
if statutory bases on which decisions were made couldvbe defended in court. Mr.
Papenfuse responded that if the scheduling process is done properly and records
are assessed properly the Archives knows what restrictions are placed on them. He
explained that the Hall of Records Comission-set up to represent all three branches

of the goverrnment-has the discretion to open or close records turned over to.thé

Archivist.

Senator Hickman asked if Mr. Papenfuse had a list of record systems. Mr. Papen-
fuse respohded that the list would probably not be as complete as Senator Hickman

would want, but that most departments have schedules.




Mr. Sweeney asked if Mr. Papenfuse or the Assistant Attorney General review
requests under the Public Information Act as to whether access should be allowed.
Mr. Papenfuse responded that this was not done routinely and that the issue had
not arisen. Mr. Papenfuse noted that eleven thousand people use the Archives éach
year and 8,000 letters are answered. All deal with personal information. To date,
he has not received a single camplaint about invasion of privacy. Mr. Papenfuse
said that records shéuld be locked at series by series to determine at what point

information should be available to the public if at all.

After Mr. Papenfuse completed his testimony, the Commission recessed for a short

break.

Mr. Jay Kaplan, Chief Solicitor and Mr. David Young, Assistant City Solicitor,
of the Baltimore City Solicitor's Office next appeared to respond to remarks made
by Mr. Hoshall. They indicated that copies of the opinions sent to Mr. Hoshall
would be forwarded to Mr. Hanratty. Mr. Kaplan thanked the Camnission for stating
its intention not to act as arbitrator. Mr. Hoshall, Mr. Kaplan stated, has a
recourse under the law if he felt he was denied information. Mr. Kaplan emphasized
that the City Solicitor has complied with the law in responding to Mr. Hoshall's
requests. Mr. Kaplan referred to the estimate of costs which was sent to Mr. Hoshall
(costs to provide the material Mr. Hosall had requested from the Police Department)
Mr. Kaplan stated that the custodian of the records is allowed to set costs and that
the City Solicitor's Office had no idea that an estimate had been quoted by the City

Solicitor representing the Police Department.

Mr. Kaplan set forth the following dates concerning Mr. Hoshall's case:

May 8, 1980 Date of initial request to the Head of the Community Rela-
tions Commnission.

May 13, 1980 Request referred to the City Solicitor's Office for response.




Oct 10, 1980 Mr. Benjamin Brown, City Solicitor, wrote to Mr. Hoshall
: apologizing for the delay and stating that Mr. Hoshall would
have an opinion on the 14th. ‘
Oct 14, 1980 The Opinion was delivered to Mr. Hoshall,
Nov 15, 1980' Letter from Mr. Hoshall addressed to Mr. Brown,
Dec 9, 1980 Response from the Deputy City Solicitor's office to Mr. Hoshall.

Dec 12, 1980 TFollow-up letter by Mr. Young .

Mr. Young added that a letter was also sent Janmuary 7, 198l in response to one

fram Mr. Hoshall dated December 24, 1980.

Mr. Yourng stated that the response of the Clty Solicitor's Office was based
on an interpretation of the law .and that there was no intent to deny Mr. Hoshall the
information. Mr. Young stated that Section 3A of the Public Information Act sets
forth certain exemptions to the availability of public records. Their office issued
the opinion letter under 3A-4 which provides = an exemption from diSclosure_ where
such. public records are privileged or confidential by law. The opinion was also
based on Mr. Young's reading of the Codei of Baltimore City—Article 4, Section 18-E,
which applies to cawplaints filed with the Baltimore City Community Relations Commis-—
sion. Mr. Young stated that Mr. Hoshall had asserted that this articl_’e applied

only to the investigation of acts of discrimination filed with the City Commission.

' In response, Mr. Young explained to the Information Practices Commission that the

article was first adopted in 1966 and provisions of the code setting' up the Police

Camplaint Evaluation Board were not adopted until 1975.

Mr. Young stated that it was his belief that the jurisdiction of the Community
Relations Cammission was expanded in 1975 to include investigation of alleged police

brutality; furthermore, he felt that there is no such indication fram the Code that

"Section 18 was intended to apply only to the investigation of acts of discrimination.




Mr. Yowng cited Section 18-E of the Baltimore City Code: "neither the Cammis-
"\ sion nor its staff shall disclose what has transpired during the course of any
investigation nor shall thé publicity be given to any negotiations or to the fact
that complaints have been filed". Based on this, the City Solicitor's Office felt

that the information Mr. Hoshall sought was exempted from disclosure.

Mr. Young added that Section 3B-1 of Article 76-A (Annotated Code of Maryland)
provides for a right of denial to inspection by the record custodian‘if he believed
that disclosure to the applicant would be contrary to the public interest. The City
Solicitor's Office, Mr. Young maintained, held that disclosure of the Community
Relations Chmﬁdssion records would be contrary to the’public interst and would have-
a "chilling" effect on persons who might want to come forward and file a canpléint

alleging acts of police brutality.

Since the Commission had not had the opportunity to ask questions of Mr.

Hoshall, Mr. Drea recalled Mr., Hoshall to respond to questions.

In response to Mr. Clinton's question concerning the topic of the research,

Mr. Hoshall explained that it covered two levels. The first involved the interac-

tions on the street between officers and citizens. More specifically, Mr. Hoshall

indicated that he was interested in discovering the factors leading to the filing

of camplaints. The second level dealt with understanding the factors used by the

Baltimore City Police Department to determine the outcaome of the investigation.

Mf. Hoshall indicafed an interest in discovering the evidentiary factors that seemed

to détermine the outcomes of investigations 95% of the time in favor of the police.
cl\ Mr. Hoshall stated that he had requested records disclosed not contain names, addre~

sses and identifying information regarding the persons involved. Mr. Hoshall added

that the argument used by Mr. Young citing the chilling effect resulting fram




disclosure was an old and fallacious technique and that its only relevance was
prior to a trial when leékages of information could prejudice an investigation.

He added that the cases he had requested were all closed.

Mr. Drea and Mr, Hoshall discussed the time period which elapsed between
Mr. Hoshall's initial request for information and the date he received a definitive
response. Mr. Drea referred to the Proposal #1 in‘Mr. Hoshall's written testimony
pertaing to a definite time limit in which agencies should respond to requests for-
information under the Public Information Act. Mr. Drea asked if Mr. Hoshall would
agree with a proposal réquiring an acknowledgement to a request for information in
a brief period(5-7 days) followed by a definitive response (30-60 days). Mr.

Hoshall agreed that that would be satisfactory.

Mr. Drea referred to Mr. Hoshall's testimony and the statement that the city
had told him he would have to pay the hourly services (as part of the costs) of a
sergeant to cull out‘personal information. Mr. Hoshéll asserted that thé Police
Department is represented by the Baltimore City Solicitor's Office but that the
’person representing the Department does not appear to comunicate with the rest of
the City Solicitor's Office. He felt that the representatives present'at the
hearing probably didn't know that this was occuring. He agreed to furnish a copy
of the letter fram the Baltimore City Solicitor's Office delineating costs to the
Commission. Mr. Hoshall added that there is obviously no uniform application of
charges since other data requiring indirect cost to the departmenf is often giQen

to citizens free of charge.

In response to a final question from Mr. Drea, Mr. Hoshall affirmed that he
had_informed the City Solicitor's Office that his interest in obtaining the material
was for a bona fide research project and added that the project was approved by

the Graduate School of Criminal Justice at the University of Baltimore. The study

n




-

was to be conducted under the supervision of the department.

Mr. Kaplan and Mr. Young were asked to return to respond to questions fram

the Camnission.

In response to Mr. Clinton, Mr. Kaplan remarked that he had no knowledge
regarding who sent the estimate of costs out to Mr. Hoshall. Costs, he indicated,
were left up to the individual departments. He acknowledged that same information
was probably given out at no'cost. Mr. Kaplan added that the “chilling" effect Mr.
Hoshall had réferred to was language taken from a decision by a United States

Federal district judge. Mr. Drea asked Mr. Kaplan's opinion of the proposal he had

‘made earlier that an acknowledgment to a Public Information Act request be sent out -

within 5 to 7 days and a definite response be issued within 30 to 60 days. Mr. .
Kaplan stated that he had no disagreement with such a prbposal. If the proposal

was part of the law, Mr. Kaplan stated that the city would comply.

Mr. Drea maintained that as he understood the legal position of the City Soli-

citor, the denial had been made on two bases: 1) as a requried denial because of

_a Baltimore statute holding the record to be confidential by law; 2) as a discre-

tionary denial because the record fell under the adverse public interest section
with regard to police investigations. Mr. Drea then asked Mr. Young the following
hypothetical question: 'if he was only bound by the discretionary denial provision
and the request was clearly for a‘bonifide research project, wculd his decision have

been the same? Mr. Young answered that there was a good probability that his deci-

sion would have been the same.

Mr. Sweeney asked where the chilling effect entered if all identifying charac-
teristics were eliminated from the records. Mr. Kaplan responded that even if an

individual knew that his name and address would be deleted fram a record, he would




U e g

be reluctant to testify if such records were made publid.

Mr. Sweeney questioned whether reports were available to the officers who were

the subjects of the investigations. Mr. Kaplan responded that he did not know.

In response to a question from Dr. Trader concerning where the responsibility -
of the City Solicitor's Office ended and the researcher's responsibility began in
terms of protecting the public and confidentiality, Mr. Kaplan stated that the city's

responsibility ended where the law tells it.

Mr. Young made. the final point that Mr. Hoshall has a remedy under the law.

The function of the City Solicitor's office was only to interpret the law.

The next witness was Mr. Luther Starnes, Executive Assistant to the Secretary,
Department of Human Resources. He presented a package of materials on issues of
relevance to the hearing (attached). In addition to Mr. Starnes,’Mr. Joe Farkas,
Division of Data Processing; Ms. Lois Lapidus, Assistant Attorney General; and Mr.
Ed McGarry, Division of General Services, attended from the Department of Human -

Resources.

Mr. Starnes explained that the Department provides benefits and services to low
income persons.. As a rough estimate, Mr. Starnes stated that the Department has

between 350,000 andv400,000 case records containing personal information.

Senator Hiékman asked if the Départment had a cataiog of record systems includ-
ing information on the nature of the subjects, security, etc. Mr. Starnes repliéd
that this question was among a list of 27 questions sent by Mr. Hanratty and indi-
cated that answers would be ready by April 15th. He added that the department is in

the process of camputerizing the Welfare Eligibility Process State-wide. Mr, Starnes

1"




indicated that eighteen of the ‘Department's records were now computerized. He
noted that there are several foms within each program which contain scme personal
information. They are being compiled and a catalog of the forms will be provided

to the Commission.

In response to Mr; Heckrotte's inquiry as to whether the welfare system is
locally administered, Mr. Starnes explained that while there are local departments
of social services, the employees are all state employees. Mr. Starnes stated
that there is a local Social Service Board which appoints a director, and that.,

in most cases, there is no local money involved. The state, he indicated, is

resporisible for reguiations and guidelines on records; each local unit may have

its 6wn_variation of a record system but it must meet the guidelines of the state.

Discussion followed on the subject of automation and whether this would cut

down on repetition and inconsistencies in data. Mr. Starnes cited the Automated

Incame Maintenance System (AIMS). Using Social Security numbers of an applicant,

the department can now access employment security wage records and verify informa-

tion right in the computer terminal. He felt that automation would cut down on

the duplication of forms but wbuld provide additional information to the Commission.

Senator ‘Hickman inquired about security measures at individual terminals and the
number of these terminals. Mr. Farkas could not supply a specific number. He
explained that the security sysfem now requires two things: a password and (unintel-
ligible). There are currently two password systems, only one of which is changed.
Mr. Farkas was sure that a user ID was also required. Mr. Starnes added that the
legislative auditor had just finished an audit of the department that addressed

security questions, and that this audit was available.

Senator Hickman asked if the Secretary's Office had received complaints about




the misuse of information. Mr. Starnes responded that it had not and he then
explained thét the department is steadfast in not sharing particular information

on welfare recipients. Mr. Starnes stated that many people believe that large
nuwbers of recipients cheat and that therefore the Department gets welfare fraud
allegations on a regulér basis. He indicated that the allegations afe investigated,
but that the results were not shared with anyone. Indeed, he said,'thé Department
does not even state no fraud occurred because that would indicate that a person was

a welfare recipient.

Senator Hickman explained that constituents often come into his office disagree-
ing with the Social Services rulings. Senatof Hickman asked if the Department has
guidelines governing the release of jinfomation to elected representatives. Mr.
Starnes responded that if a client goes to an elected representative énd lays out the
facts of his case, the Social Services Office will discuss the case with the repre-
sentative. Anyone who goes to a public official, Mr. Starnes maintained, has for
that specific purpose waived his desire for confidentiality. Mr. Starnes added there

was no written opinion covering this scenario.

In response to a question from Mr. Sweeney, Mr. Starnes stated that he did not
think that a state police officer with appropriate identification could examine -
welfare records. Ms. Lapidus added that under Federal regulations, the Department
oould only>disclose information to other agencies that adminiéter funds on a needs
basis. Mr. Starmes stated that if a person applied for welfare after having losﬁ
his job, it fifst has to be determined if he is eligible for unémploymentlbefore he
would obtain welfare assistance. Mr. Sweeney asked if the interchange of informa-
tion between state agencies was a problem. Mr. Starnés replied.that he was not

aware cof any such problems.

In response to a question posed by Mr. Sweeney, Mr. Starnes stated that the




Department does not actively review the local offices to insure that their record
systems comply with Federal and State law. Mr. Starnes indicated that the Department

does perform quality control reviews on error rates in the local offices.

Mr. Clinton brouwght up the topic of adoption records. Mr. Starnes stated that
at the moment adoptees do not have access to records pertaining to information on
their natural family. He noted that the General Asseambly was examining currently a

bill that would authorize:. access.

Discussion followed on the child abuse registry. Mr. Stames expressed his.feél—'
ing that concern exists that reports can get into the registfy without iﬁvestigation.
Mr. Starnes indicated that the report‘of a private citizen would not necessarily
enter the registry, but that reports from a physician, school official, or police
agency would be entered. Ms. Lapidus explained that not all names involved in a
child abuse incident enter the registry. Access to the list is provided to social
service personnel, educationﬁpersonnel and others in that general nature. An educa-
tor can call and get a name if it is on the confirmed abuse list or on ﬁhe list of‘
incidents where it was impossible to ascertain what actually happened. Ms. Lapidus
also indicated that in cases of confirmed abuse, the individual cén appeal and

discover whether he can seek judicial review on the determination by the agency.

Mr. Tynes noted that the Department of Human Resources veceived considerable
federal funding and asked about the nomal federal reporting requirements; Mr.
Starnes replied that statistical reporting was done on a quarterly basié and that
the Department is reimbursed retroactively fram the Federal Government. He indicated
that Quality Control reporting is conducted every 6 months. Mr. Starnes elaborated
on the issue-stating that a list of recipients is not required to support expenditﬁres.
He Statéd that the only occasion an individual's case is seen is if a case is pulled

out as a sample for Quality Control.




Mr. Clinton asked about employee training in the use of the Citizen Response
Plan. Mr. Starnes replied that it was a new plan. Due to the size of the Department,
the administrative setup provides for direct organizationai feed. ‘Everything gées
through the Executive Staff for discussion and thé heads of each agency are charged
with implementation. Mr. Starnes stated that because the department deéls directly
with the deliver& of services to citizens, it is not difficult to notice a division

that may not be following too closely their responses.

Mr. Gardner asked if the Department gets any requests for personal information
fram the Federal Government. Mr. Starnes replied that the only request involves

review of the Department's.Quality Control sample.

Mr. Heckrotte asked about data exchanged with Social Security under BENDEX, such
as a record of people receiving Welfare Payments or Social Security. Mr. Starnes |
explained that Social Security only gets involved in that situation as a benefit
agenhcy. He indicated that the department shares information with Social Security
but that Social Security has nothing to do with the supervision of the Department's

program.
A five minute break was held.

Ms. Caroline Stellman, Executive Director of the Consumer Council of Maryland,
was the next witness to testify. Mr. Stellman advocated patients in State medical
facilities being permitted to examine and copy their own records. Ms. Stellman quoted
the 1980 survey conducted by the Health Research Group of Washington, D.C., which'
discovered that all but seven states allow same access, generally through a mental
health statute, to patient fecords by the person in intérest. She indicated that
Federal facilities allow the right to access and copy (for a fee) and have not found

it to be a problem. In fact, Ms. Stellman said, Federal facilities studies with




mental health patients have shown anxieties and tensions lessened by the ability

to look at health care records.

Ms. Stellman stated the Consumer Council's position that there would be a more
open patient-physician relationéhip if patient access was granted. The patient
would be able to see if his record was accurate, immediate emergency information would
be available if necessary, there would be more continuity of care, and the patignt

oould moderate the costs of health care.

Ms. Stellman added that there are four bills in the General Assembly to modify
patient access to health care records in Maryland. She notéd that the Council alsq
maintained that if a patient has the right to examine his own récords then he should
have the right to correct and ammend them. The Council also supported the position
that a patient should be permitted to insert a dissenting comment in the record if
the health facility refuses to amend the record., Ms. Stellman expressed the Council's
view that the patient should be notified of the‘right to access and of the necessity
for a charge if he uses that right. She stated that, if a statute is passed, hospi—
tals should have a definite time frame for responding to a patient query and a mecha-

nism should be set up so that if there is a problem, the complaint can be handled in

a. uniform manner.

In response to a question raised by Mr. Heckrotte, Ms. Stellman stated the reasons.
given by health care facilities for not providing access and her responses to these

reasons as the following:

-Patients won't understand their records. (This is in opposition to the principles

of informed consent.)
-Potential hamm. (Has not been documented.)
-Increase in malpractice suits. (HEW Secretary's Cammission on Medical Malpractice

)




found that there were fewer suits with open records.)

—Frequency of requests. (Hasn't happened in Federal facilities or states that
allow access.) |

‘—Cost (Appropriate charge—-it pays for itself.)

—Quality and value of records-records won't reflect the true thoughts. (If the
records aren't accurate-the physician is more open to malpractice suits and

records might be written more carefully with open records. )

Mr. Drea asked if the Consumer Cc_>uncil's Report addressed the distinction between
hospital records and attending physicians' records. Ms. Stellman responded affirma-
tevely. | She noted that two current bills deal only with health care facility records
as these were thought to be easier to open. Ms. Stellman expressed the view that
both types should be open and stated that this was reflected in the Council's report..
However, she added, no distinction was made in the report between public and private
medical care facilities. Ms. Stellman stated tha‘; she would like to see the Commis—
sion include both public and private institutions, as a fuil health care reco_rd

probably goes beyond the state institution.

The next witness was Ms. Beatrice Weitzel, Executive Ass}istant to the Secretary,
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene. Ms Weitzel stated that a written reply would
be forwarded to the Ccmmissiqn. Ms. Weitzel said that the Department was governed by
the Maryland Code, a nurber of rules and re‘gulat'ions‘,‘ policies developed within tﬁe
Department, various acts and guidelines (NIDA-National Instituﬁé of Drug Abuse) and
also by a number of court decisions. She stated that the major areas in the Depart-

ment where the Interim Report of the Cammission mlpacts involved patlent/cllent records,

. v1tal records for state residents, licensing and pennlt records, medical assistance

program information, laboratory tests and inspections, and inspections and surveys of

hospitals, nursing homes and related institutions and public health information. -

AN gl




In the area of Medical Recordé, Ms. Weitzel said that according to information
received fram the Assistant Secretary for Mental Health and Addictions, there is
currently no prpblem with making information available to patients. However, the
Department does have reservations regarding copying of this information. There' is
concern that certain items in medical records not be available to the patient, such
as comments of counselors and decisions by the mediéal director as to patient care
or prognostics. It is felt that disclosuie of this information would bé counter-

productive to the patient's progress and should be kept in file for use in treatment.

Ms. Weitzel added that the Department has information relative to peréons in
programs such as drug abuse, alcoholism, and quarter-way and half-way houses. Many
use local health departments for clihic services—preliminary help in drug abuse/
alooholism or information for family planning. She stated that the personal records
of these programs are all confidential. The Department also has records of persons
who were detained by court order in institutions and are covered under very specific

areas through Supreme Court decisions and specific guidelines.

In the area of Vifal Records, Ms. Weitzel stated that the Department maintained
information on births, marriages, adoptions and deaths, and that these records are
covered in the Code and in Departmental regulations. Regarding birth records, Ms.
Weitzel said that the information is available only to the individual or to either
parent if their name appears on the original certificate. On ﬁhe state level, marriage
information is available upon written request only to both parties involved; 'On the
county levels, marriage information is covered under Clerk of Court orders and varies
from County to County. Death information is available to the immediate family, to
the persons ; designated to act, or to a person with a court order. Ms. Weitzel indi-
cated that this information is only mailed to a proper address and is not handed to

sameone visiting the office.




Ms. Weitzel stated that information pertaining to medical care recipients
was shared with the Department of Human Resources. She stated that Human Resources
determined eligibility while the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene administers
the care and handles bill paying. This information, she asserted, is computerized
and security is ensured. Ms. Weitzel stated that the computer facility is super-
vised and identification codes are used. Password codes are at various levels—
certain information is available to the person entering additional informatioh. There
is other information available only to another person with the proper password. ™
addition, a great deal of the information is in code and éven if access to a printout

sheet was available, it would mean very little.

The Department has a number of licensihg boards which maintain information on
a number of professional people. Ms. Weitzel stated that this information is con-
trolled by the respective boards. Some supply rosters for public use at a charge
which they determine. Some of the information-is not public such as grades ana
information on allegations of invéstigations (until a determination has been made of

the charges).

Ms. Weitzel indicated that the Department laboratories are privy to sensitive
information. Such information can only be given out to the submitter of information.
The Department does not give out information on labs licensed by them, locations,

number cff tests and other related facts.

Ms. Weitzel stated that hospital and nursing home inspections conducted by the
Department of Licensing and Certification are public information with the exception of

any personal patient information that is in the records.

The Department has tried through not only the Citizen Response Plan but through

individually developed procedures to determine that proper care is taken to ensure




that personal information is protected while at the same time permitting access

to public infommation.

Ms. Weitzel indicated tha£ the Department currently is reviewing its policies

. regarding the retention,'distribution, and destruction of records. She stated that
the Department would provide a list detailing points of disagreement with the Interim
Réport. Ms. Weitzel asserted that in general; the Department was pleased with fhe

Interim Report and felt it does address a need.

Mr. Drea asked if there were written Departmental policies covering the areas
addressed by Ms. Weitzel. Ms. Weitzel indicated that such written policies did exist

and that they would be sent to the Cammission with the other materials.

Mr. Sweeney asked if the Department thought that there was a need or that the
law should be changed to allow the use of information for legitimate public health
research.efforts. Ms. Weitzell replied that she did not know, but would find out.
Secondly, Mr. Sweeney questioned if it made sense on the state level to deny access
‘to marriage license records when one can go to the county and get acceés. Mr., Sweeney
asked if this policy should not be consistent. Ms. Whitzell responded that the Depart-
ment feels its regulations are consistent. She indicated that throughout regulations,
persons of primary interest should be allowed access. Mr. Sweeney summarized the
Department's position as being the maintenance of consistency between different types
of records in the possession of the Department even though counties may be following

different policies.

Mr. Gardner asked if Ms. Weitzel was addressing information collected and retained
in a central location. Ms. Whitzell replied that there is one central collection point
for Vital Records. That information is completely separate from information collected

for medical care programs.




Ms. Weitzel stated information pertaining for patient records is maintained at
each hospital. She added that Department regulations pertain to whatever the area
is and to anything within the Department. These regulations may overlap into another
agency. In such a situation, she asserted, that agency has the opportunity to add
input at the time of promulgation. When a regulation is published in the Maryland
Begister and becomes part of operating procedure, it applies department-wide. The
requlation doesn't apply to parties providing information to. the Departrﬁent but only
to those over which the Department has jurisdiction - such as marriage license infor-

mation. The Department does not have jurisdiction over clerks of the counties.

Mr. Sweeney questioned if the Department's policy regarding medical records at
state institutions is in writing. Ms. Weitzel replied that these policies were not

in writing and were being examined at the present time.

Mr. Sweeney asked if the compensation paid by the State to doctors was regarded
as public information. Ms. Weitzel replied ‘that reports are prepared at the end of
each year which give the total amounts to the providers. If inguiries are received
as to individual providers they normally are handled with the Assistant Attorney

General in that area. Such information is available to the public.

In response to a question from Mr. Drea, Ms. Weitzel indicated that all licensing
boards have regulations in written form and that copies would be. sent to the Commis—

sion within a week.

Discussion followed over the issue of patient access to camments in records and
concern over the copying of records. Ms. Weitzel explained that it is often difficult
to pinpoint the problem with ,b for example, patients suffering fram mental disorders.
As a consequence, some comments are highly speculative. Access to these comments

"might restrict what was put in a patient's file. At the same time, a phy'siciar_l might




not wént a patient to examine a record if the outlock was nbt favorable. Mr, Drea
questioned‘the difference between the medical patient whose proénosis was unfavorable‘
and the mental health patient with a similar prognosis. Ms. Weitzel suggested that
the issue should be dealt with by the psychiatrists themselves who could spell out

their objections to the Commission.

Mr. Heckrotte wondered if’any studies had been done to see how many patients’are
actually interested in looking at their records. This, he suggested, might be rele-
vant to the cost objectioh mentioned by Ms. Stellman. Ms. Wéitzel responded that |
she did not know. The Department had run into situations, however; where the cost

of reproducing records requested in class action suits was a problem.

Mr. Sweeney asked if there was a policy regarding access to personal records by
law enforcement personnel with proper identification. Ms. Weitzel answered that in
certain situatiqns, personal records could be available. If a charge of patieﬁt
abuse had been made, the State Police would be asked to investigate. Investigators
would be allowed access to the person's file with the person's kndwledge. There
may be instances of other allegations or incidents pertaining to the investigation.
However, Ms. Weitzel added, for release of any other information other than that on

the Department's own personnel, a court order would be required.
There were no further questions and the PubliciHearing was concluded. .

Mr. Drea held a short Commission meeting. The next meeting was. set for April 20,

1981. (This has since been changed to April 27, 1981.)

a2




